TOWN OF ASHLAND
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
MONDAY, MARCH 30, 2020 at 5:30 p.m.
ASHLAND WATER & SEWER CONFERENCE ROOM
6 COLLINS ST, ASHLAND, NH

Note: due to the current COVID -19 pandemic the Governor issued an Emergency Order #12 that
waived the location requirement of public officials at a public meeting. This meeting will be
conducted on site but with limited seating due to Emergency Order #16 that prohibits gatherings of 10
or more people. We encourage members of the public call into our phone conference number, join
our “Zoom" meeting function or view the live stream through PBTV. Links and information on how
to enter and view the meeting are below. Ifissues occur during the meeting we ask that you please
call 603-968-4002 or email townadmin@ashland nh.gov.

Phone conference number: (712) 770-5027 participant code: 535617
Zoom information: https://zoom.us/i/550919891 Meeting ID: 550 919 891 : Dial 1 (929) 205 6099
PBTV live broadcast: https://youtu.be/UaESeUwzc3w

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
II. CALL TO ORDER
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. BOS meeting(s); 3/16/2020
IV. NEW BUSINESS
a. Ashland Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector appointment
b. Ashland Police Department; acceptance of donation
¢. Ashland Union Employees Collective Bargaining Agreement
OLD BUSINESS
V1. SELECTBOARD ITEMS
VII. ADJOURN

<

Posted on 3/27/2020 at the Town Office building and town website

The Ashland Board of Selectmen reserve the right to enter nonpublic session when necessary according to the provisions of
RSA 91-A. Any person with a disabling condition who wishes to attend this public meeting and needs to be provided
reasonable accommodations to participate, please contact the Ashland Town Office at 603-968-4432 so accommodations
can be made. It is asked that such requests be made with prior notice.



W o~ Bl oW e

P T Y T e T R Oy R T T S I S I N R N I U O NN NE R Ry =

1L

HI.

TOWN OF ASHLAND
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, MARCH 16, 2020
ASHEAND FIRE STATION
6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER - The Town of Ashland Chairman of the Board Frances Newton and
Selectman Eli Badger teleconferenced into the meeting. Both self-quarantined for the health,
wellness and safety of others, as the public deals with the spread of the coronavirus. Chairman
Newton called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with Vice Chairman Kathleen DeWolfe,
Selectman Badger, and new Selectmen Jamie Lyford and Allan Cilley all signified they were
present for the meeting.

ASHLAND BOARD OF SELECTMEN REORGANIZATION — with two new Selectmen
voted in last week the board reorganized at their first meeting following the election. Board
members voted on a new Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board. The Selectmen postponed
their appointments to other boards and committees until their meeting next month.

MOTION: Selectman DeWoife :

To appoint Selectman Badger as the new Chazrman of the Board
SECOND: Selectman Cilley :

VOTE: 5-0 B

MOTION PASSED

MOTION: Selectman Badger .

To appoint Selectman DeWolfe as the Vice Chazrman of the Board,
SECOND: Selectman Newton ER

VOTE: 5-0 '

MOTION PASSED

NONPUBLIC SESSION

MOTION: Selectman Newton

To enter nonpublic session under RSA 91-A4:3, II (b).

SECOND: Chairman Badger

VOTE: 3-2

MOTION PASSED

ENTERED: 6:35 p.m.

RENTERED: 6:54 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENT: the open Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector position to be advertised
on the town website and in a newspaper for the period of one week.

Ashland Board of Selectmen meeting minutes — 3/16/2020 Pagel of 3



000 S U B WA e

WL W W Wb W RN NN R R NP R B R S e

39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

NONPUBLIC SESSION

MOTION: Vice Chairman DeWolfe

To enter nonpublic session under RSA 91-4:3, II (b).

SECOND: Selectman Lyford

VOTE: 5-0

MOTION PASSED

ENTERED: 6:56 p.m.

RENTERED: 7:08 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENT: hiring of a new journeyman linesman at Ashland Electric.

IV.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES - the meeting minutes from March 2, 2020 were moved forward
without a vote as the board did not have a quorum from the meeting to vote on them. Selectmen
Newton was absent for the meeting and the board had two new members since the meeting.
Note: it is not a requirement of the law to vote on Selectmen meeting minufes.

V. PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT - Town Manager Smith read a prepared statement about the
temporary closing of the Town Office, Utility Building, and Booster Club due to the spread of
the coronavirus (COVID-19). The Town Office and Utility Building will continue to accept
payments by appointment, but residents are encouraged to pay via phone, emaﬂ oronline. Town
to reassess this situation next month

VL. NEW BUSINESS

a.

Ashland 4 of July Committee — Ashland 4lh of July Committee member Kendall
Hughes updated the Board of Selectmen abouit the 4™ of July event. Kendall presented
a layout of the vendors and entertainment to be statloned at the ballpark.

Ashland Transfer Station new scale fees — Ashland Public Works Director Craig
Moore recommended the board implement a new scale fee at the Transfer Station.

- Director Moore researched nelghbormg towns with scales and suggested the town

o 1mplement a similar fee at $0.08 per pound. Director Moore noted that the employees

working at the station will be certified. Director Moore also informed the Board that at

this time the scale will only be used for construction debris.

MOTION: Vice Chairman DeWolfe

To have the Transfer Stations new scale fee start at $0.08 per pound.
SECOND: Selectman Cilley

VOTE: 5-0

MOTION PASSED

VII. SELECTBOARD ITEMS

a.

b.

Ashland Water & Sewer Headworks and Septage Receiving station ceremony —
item was tabled until further notice.

Board, Committees, and Commission appointments — the applications for
reappointments or new appointments are due in April. Town has open and expiring
posttions on the Planning Board, Zoning Board of Adjustment, Scribner Memorial
Trustees, Conservation Committee, Memorial Park Trustees, Capital Improvement
Program, Economic Development, and Heritage Commission.

Ashland Board of Selectmen meeting minutes — 3/16/2020 Page 2 of 3



W00~ MW B

1

[y
= O

¢. Electronic Selectmen meetings — in the event the next Board of Selectmen meeting
must be conducted electronically (recommendation to mitigate the spread of COVID-
19 is groups of people be lower than 10) the Selectmen asked the Town Manager to
research into video teleconferencing.

d. Selectmen signature file — the Board signed intent to cut and yield tax forms.

VIII.  ADJOURNED - the Board of Selectmen adjourned at 7:43 p.m. until their next meeting
scheduled for Monday, April 6, 2020.

On behalf of the Ashland Board of Selectmen Town Manager Charles Smith wrote these meeting
minutes on March 19, 2020. .

Ashland Board of Selectmen meeting minutes — 3/16/2020 Page 3 of 3



Town of Ashland
Board of Seiectmen
Agenda Report

Date: 03/26/2020

To: Board of Selectmen

From: Chief Ulwick

Subject: Donation acceptance

Recommended motion: to accept a donation of $740 for the purchase of an AED for the PD and
allow the release of those funds for said purchase.

Background: [ approached the Meredith Village Savings Bank to assist with the purchase for
an AED for the PD. They were kind enough to donate the full amount.

Issue:

Fiscal Impact: None, this purchase is fully funded by the donation



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

TOWN OF ASHLAND,
NEW HAMPSHIRE

&

STATE EMPLOYEES’ ASSOC. OF NH
SEIU LOCAL 1984,
ASHLAND TOWN EMPLOYEES

April 1, 2020 — March 31, 2023



Preamble
Article 1:
Article 2:
Article 3:
Article 4.
Article 5:
Article 6:
Article 7:
Article &:
Article 9:
Article 10:
Article 11:
Article 12:
Article 13;
Article 14:
Article 15;
Article 16:
Article 17:
Atticle 18:
Article 19:
Article 20:
Article 21:
Article 22:
Article 23:
Axticle 24:
Article 25:
Article 29:
Article 27;
Article 28:
Article 29:
Article 30;
Article 31:
Article 32:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE

Recognition
Non-Discrimination
Maintenance of Membership
DPues Deduction
Seniority

Promotions and Transfers
Hours of Work and Overtime
Plus Rates

Emergency Work
Holidays

Annual Vacation
Personal Leave

Sickness and Disability
Family Medical Leave of Absence
Worker’s Compensation
Leave of Absence
Bereavement Leave
Military Leave

Jury and Witness Duty
Life Insurance

Health Insurance

Wage Rates

Uniforms

Expenses

Disciplinary Procedures
Tuition Refund
Grievance Procedure

No Strike, No Lockout
Management’s Rights
Subcontracting
Severability

Duration

Wage Appendix

PAGE NUMBER

g gegefiegegtai- NN R S R el

g
4]

[
o

-

[

24



PREAMBLE

The purpose and intent of the Town of Ashland, hereinafier called the Town, and the State Employees
Association of New Hampshire, SEIU Local 1984, herein after called the Union, entering into this
Agreement is to promote orderly and peaceful relations between the Town and the organized
employees in the Bargaining Unit included in the following Agreement and to provide on behalf of
the citizens of Ashland approved services in an effective and efficient manner. .

ARTICLE 1
RECOGNITION

The Town of Ashland hereby recognizes the SEA/SEIU Local 1984 in accordance with RSA 273-A
as the exclusive representative of the bargaining unit in the Certification of Representation as follows:

Full-time and part-time employees: Linesman Apprentice 1, Linesman Apprentice 2,
Linesman Apprentice 3, Linesman Apprentice 4, Linesman Journeyman, Water/Sewer
Supervisor, Water/Sewer Operator, Utility Office Manager, Utility Clerk/Secretary, Utility
Clerk, Equipment Operator/Laborer, Laborer, Mechanic, Transfer Station Attendant,

Highway Foreman, Police Department Sergeant, Police Department Patrol Officer, and
Administrative Assistant.

As provided for in the Collective Bargaining Agreement, regular part-time employees shall be .
defined as employees who have successfully completed their probationary period and are assigned a
regular work week schedule of twenty (20) hours or more and, except as otherwise provided in the
Collective Bargaining Agreement, benefits for regular part-time employees will be on a pro-rata basis
in accordance with the employee's work schedule and regular rate of pay.

The Town agrees to provide reasonable notice to the Association concerning the posting of

bargaining unit positions or the modification o existing positions. Nothing in this aereement to
8 S £ P g

provide such reasonable nofice, however, is intended to infringe upen or restrict in an 1y way the

management rights of the Town as described in Article 30 of this Collective Bargaining
Agreement.

ARTICLE 2
NON-DISCRIMINATION
1. The Town and the departments covered by this Agreement agree not to discriminate against
employees covered by this Agreement on account of membership or non-membership in the
Union.
2. The Town, the departments, and the Union covered by this Agrecement agree not to

discriminate in any way against employees covered by this Agreement on account of religion,
race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, or physical handicap.



2

L)

[N

ARTICLE 3
MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP

Each member of the bargaining unit who, on the effective date of this agreement, is a member
of the Union, and each employee who becomes a member of the bargaining unit and Union
after that date shall continue his/her membership in the Union during the duration of the
Agreement: provided, however, that an employee may at his/her discretion and in writing, -
withdraw his/her membership from the Union anytime within five (5) working days prior to
the employees’ anniversary date thereafter.

Any employee who is in the bargaining unit and is not a member of the Union but wishes to
have the Union represent them in a grievance shall assume full financial responsibilities as to
the actual costs of processing the grievance. Collection of such fees shall be the sole
responsibility of the Union.

Should there be a dispute between an employee and the Union over the matter of an
employee's Union membership, the Union agrees to hold the Town harmless in any such
dispute.

The Union shall post notices on all departmental bulletin boards thirty (30) calendar days
prior to the anniversary date of the contract to advise employees of their option as provided
in Section 1 of the Article.

The Union shall be afforded an opportunity to meet with new employees at orientations
offered by the Employer. The presentation may be up to one half hour in duration and shall
be conducted by a Union staff person or Union Officer. If a Union staff person is unable to
attend the orentation, the Union shall have access to all new employees for up to one half
hour at the convenience of the Employer within thirty (30) calendar days following the
orientation.

ARTICLE 4
DUES DEDUCTION

The Town agrees to authorize the deduction of Local 1984 dues from each employee who
has signed an authorization and send said dues along with a statement indicating who has
paid dues to the Treasurer of Local 1984, SEA.

The Union will keep the Town informed of the correct name and address of the Treasurer
ofLocal 1984, SEA.

This deduction of dues shall be made on a weekly basis and shall be sent monthly to the
Treasurer of Local 1984, SEA.

o



3]

12

If any employee has no check coming to him/her, or if histher check is not large enough to
satisfy the dues, then no deduction will be made from the employee. In no case will the Town

attempt to collect fines, assessments or past due deductions from the Union beyond the
regular weekly dues.

An individual who is not a member of the union who request services of the Union in a
grievance representation shall be charged the full fair cost to the Union of such representation.
The Town shall have no responsibility or obligation in the collection of such costs,

The Union shall be allowed the use of three (3) payroil deductions for any group program(s)
in addition to a dues deduction.

ARTICLE 5
SENIORITY

Seniority shall relate to the time an employee has been continuously employed by the Town,
except that in the event of a layoff due to Jack of work an employee recalled within two (2)
years of layoff shall be credited with his/her prior service. In any instance where seniority is
considered, seniority shall be on a departmental basis.

Seniority shall prevail in matters concerning layoffs and rehiring. Qualified and available
permanent employees shall be reinstated before new employees are hired. The Town will not
be required to consider employees who have been laid off for more than two (2) years for
reinstatement. Seniority shall be the type considered in matters concerning "promotions” and
“transfers” as set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement.

All employees shall serve a six-month probationary period. Unless otherwise specified, the
probationary period may be shortened or extended by the hiring authority as appropriate.

Until an employee has served the probationary period, it shall be deemed that he/she has no
seniority status and he/she may be discharged or laid off without cause. Such discharge or
layoff shall not be subject to the grievance procedures.

An employee shall not forfeit seniority during absences caused by:

Illness resulting in total disability to his/her regular work with the department involved,
certified to by an affidavit from the Worker's Compensation carrier.

HIness not the result of his/her misconduet, resulting in temporary disability, certified to by a
periodic physician's affidavit consistent with illness and prognosis except that such affidavit
will be required at intervals of no more than every thirty (30) days.

Active Duty Military leave as provided in Article 19 will not affect the seniority of an
employee.



!\.)

(WH)

An employee shall lose his/her seniority for, but not limited to, the following reasons:
If an employee is discharged and if such discharge is not overruled by an appropriate .
authority.

If he/she resigns.

The employee's present seniority as of the effective date of this contract shall be the seniority
considered for the purpose of establishing the seniority system called for in the Article. This
seniority must have been continuous in nature as provided in Section 1 of this Article to merit
constderation under this section.

The preparation and maintenance of the seniority rosters shall be the responsibility of the
Town, approved by the Union, and is to be a part of this agreement. The lists are drawn up
and posted once each year in January.

ARTICLES 6
PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS

The Town reserves and shall have the right to make promotions and transfers but shall be
govemed by seniority where the employee meets minimum requirements as defined in job
descriptions.

Jobs to be filled through promotion or lateral transfer shali be posted on Town and Union
bulletin boards for a period of five (5) working days. The Union shall be provided adequate
space to place a bulletin board in all work sections where bargaining unitemployees are
assigned.

After an award is made of a promotion, the name of the person promoted shall be posted for
five (3) working days following said award. Employees may file a grievance within eight (8)
working days of the date posted in accordance with the grievance procedure.

Vacancies in management positions which are excluded from the bargaining units shall be
posted on the department bulletin boards provided, however, that appointment to these
positicns shall be at the sole discretion of the hiring authority and shall not be subject to the
grievance procedure in this contract.

Whenever possible, promotions shall be made from the ranks of the regular employees who
are employed by the Town,

Employees who are absent during the entire posting period shall be automatically placed on
the list for consideration for the positions provided that such employees may, at his/her
discretion, have his/her name removed from the list within five (5} working days of returning
to work. If an employee is absent and is awarded the position, the Hiring Auvthority shall
notify said employee within five (5) working days at his/her last known address. Said



10.

I

A8

employee shall respond within five (5) working days regarding his/her acceptance. All
notifications shall be in writing to the Hiring Authority

When a question as to the proper person having been chosen to fill any job arises and cannot
be resolved, it will be settled by using the grievance procedure in Article 28.

Job posting shall include job specifications, rate of pay, job location, the shift, and also if the
jobis regular.

The above procedures shall be followed in all promotion, vacancies, and transfers whether
temporary or regular.

An employee who meets the qualifications previously outlined and is promoted to a higher
level or alternate position shail be placed in a probationary status not to exceed one hundred
eighty days (180) days. The employee shall be evaluated periodically to determine if he/she
is performing the job in a satisfactory manner. If an employee is not able to satisfactorily
perform the higher level or altemate duties, then he/she shall, at the Town's sole discretion,
be reduced in status to the same classification, pay grade and rate of pay as he/she had or
would have attained had he/she not been promoted.

An employee who is promoted to a higher rated position shall receive the greater of the posted
probationary rate or five percent (5%) over their current rate of pay and shall progress in
accordance with Article 32 to the published job rate.

ARTICLE 7
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

The normai workweek shall consist of any work performed up to eight (8) for up to 5
scheduled work days per week for hourly-rated employees per day Monday through Friday.
Regular full-time and part-time transfer station employees normal work week will include
weekend hours.

All employees working an eight (8) hour work day shall be entitled to a thirty (30) minute
unpaid lunch break and two (2) fifteen (15) minute breaks during the course of the work day
with the two shorter breaks to be taken in proximity to the job site. Police Department
employees shall be paid for all breaks and are subject to immediate recall.

Employees shall be allowed a ten (10) minute clean up period prior to the end of the work
shift.

Alltime worked for all hourly paid bargaining unit employees in excess of forty (40) hours
in one week shall be paid at the rate of time and one half. Time worked shall include time
actually worked, and holiday time only. Sick leave, vacation time or personal time shall not
be considered time worked for the purposes of calculating overtime compensation.



LiJ

Any person who has left their place of employment and is recalled to work prior to the next
normal shift will be paid for a minimum of three (3) hours; provided further, that an employee
who is called back for emergency work and who completes the required task and retumns to
his/her residence withie the three-hour minimum guarantee may be called back for additional
emergency work without an additional three (3) hours minimum work guarantee, It is the
purpose and intent of this section to assure an employee of at least three (3) hours of pay for
the inconvenience of being called back to work between the normal shifis but not to be

separately paid for several call backs within the same three (3) hour minimum guarantee
period.

The workday or workweek will not be interrupted to avoid the payment of overtime.

Work outside the normal work schedule which is scheduled in advance or which requires
employees to be called in for unscheduled work shall be assigned first on a rotating basis
among all gualified employees by classification.

No temporary employee shall be assigned overtime work until all regular qualified employees
have the opportunity for such assignment.

ARTICLE 8
PLUS RATES

Hourly-paid employees in the bargaining unit will be compensated on a plus rate basis of five
percent (5%) to the nearest whole cent above his/her present rate for working in a higher level
classification for any period of five or more consecutive work days 140 hours). All temporary
reclassifications shall be at the sole discretion of the Hiring Authority.

Police Details: Police Employees who are assigned, or who volunteer, to work details, which
are paid from funds other than Town funds, shall be compensated at $§40-80 $50.00 per hour
with a four (4) hour minimum per individual assignment. Outside details administered and
paid by an agency other than the Town shall be paid at the rate determined by the requesting
agency. Details are to be offered to bargaining unit members prior to non-bargaining unit
members signing up.

Standby Compensation: Department of Public Works (“"DPW?”) Employees who volunteer
during their normal off duty hours to standby duty and are required to be availuble for
convmunication with their Department during the standby period, and for reporting ro
work swithin a reasonable period of time to duty shall receive o standby pay.

Effective July 1, 2020, DPW employees who are assigned to standby duty or requested to
be available for standby duty as determined by the Department Head shall be paid twenty-
Jive (823) dollars per day, Unless otherwise excused by the Department Head, fuilure to
report may result in discipline as provided in Article 26.



[oS]

L

ARTICLE 9
EMERGENCY WORK

It shall be the duty of all able bodied employees to make themselves available during the
course of emergency situations. Deliberate refusal to work during such situations without
adequate justification may result in disciplinary action.

When an employee responds to an emergency work situation, and due to hours worked and/or
physical exhaustion is relieved from working the normal work schedule, then time during that
normal work schedule shall be considered time worked in the computation of overtime.

ARTICLE 10
HOLIDAYS

All regular full-time employees shall be paid for the foliowing named holidays:

New Year's Day President's Day Memorial Day
Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day
Veteran's Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day

Day after Thanksgiving Day

Paid holidays occurring during the workweek shall be counted as hours for the purpose of
determining the forty (40) straight time hours.

Holidays that occur on a Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday and Sunday
holidays will be observed on the following Monday. Should a holiday occur during an
employee's scheduled vacation, the employee may receive either a paid holiday absence for
the day or extend-the vacation period by-the number-of-holidays, occurring during the
scheduled vacation period.

To be eligible for Holiday pay, an employee must work the last regularly scheduled
work day preceding the holiday and the first regularly scheduled work day following the
holiday, unless the absence is approved by his/her supervisor and/or hiring authority. All
employees are eligible to receive Holiday Pay for all hours worked on the holiday at a rate of
time and one-half the employee's regular rate of pay



I.

N

ARTICLE 11
ANNUAL VACATION

Regular full-time and regular part time employees (on a pro-rata basis) will be entitled to
annual vacation leave based on the formula below.

Years Days Accrued Days Accrued
Worked per Month per Year

0-1 0.416 5

2-4 I 12

5-10 1.416 17

1615 1.833 22

15-20 2.250 27

Monthly accruals shall be credited to the employee in the first pay period of each month.
Bargaining unit employees may use accrued vacation leave upon date of hire.

Selection of vacation period shall be by departmental seniority and shall be granted insofar
as possible at the time requested by the employee in accordance with operating requirements;
provided, however, that summer vacation shall not extend beyond two weeks unti} al} eligible
persons have had an opportunity to select vacation. Furthermore, a department head may deny
a vacation request of an employee if it will result in a disruption of the department or division
operations. An employee wishing to exercise seniority for vacation preference shall indicate
such preference in writing on or before March 1st of the calendar year. After March lst,
vacation preference will be on a first come first serve basis.

Except under extenuating circumstances, no employee may carry over more than 40 hows of
vacation time from one year to the next. Carryover of vacation time must be approved by the
Town Manager.

Empioyees who provide proper notice may elect to receive advance payment for vacation
leave for a vacation period longer than 5 continuous days. Request for advance payment shall
not be unreasonably denied.

ARTICLE i2
PERSONAL LEAVE

Each regular, full-time employee is entitled to two personal days per year, credited on January 1 of
each calendar year. These days can be used at the employee's discretion with at least 72-hours notice
to the department head and the department head's approval. These days are not cumulative and must
be used during the fiscal year. The department head shall respond within 24-hours of receipt of
request. [fno response is given within two working days, the employee may request personal leave
from the Hiring Authority. Nething herein shall prevent a department head from approving

personal leqve with less than 72-lours noetice.

Part time employees shall not be eligible for this benefit.

8



ARTICLE 13
SICKNESS AND DISABILITY

SECTION A

1. Each regular full-time employee and regular part-time employee, on a pro-rata basis, hired
on or before March 31, 2012, will be entitled to accrue sick leave at the rate of 1 ¥ days per
month (10 hours) up to a maximum of 280 hours. In the event that an employee had more
than 280 hours of accrued sick leave as of April 1, 2001, that higher number shal] be that
employee's maximum accrual rate. Should an employee with more than 280 hours' accrual
utilize the grandfathered hours or donate the hours to another employee, the maximum accrual
will be adjusted accordingly and may not be-increased to the higher rate.

I3

Each regular full-time employee and regular part-time employee, on a pro-rated basis, hired
onor after April 1, 2012, will be entitled to accrue sick leave at the rate of one-half (1/2) day
per month (4) hours for the first year of employment. Upon completion of one year of
employment, he/she will be entitled to accrue sick leave at the rate of one and one-quarter (1
1/4) days per month (10) hours up to a maximum of 240 hours.

(W]

Upon termination, employees will be paid an allowance of any of the unused accrual based
on the following: Retirement under the applicable New Hampshire Retirement Group- 75%;
Resignation- 50%; Death Beneficiary, non-job related- 75%; Death Beneficiary, job related-
100%.

4, Sick hours will be available to employees in increments of % hour if the employee so desires
tor the use of doctor's appointment, dental visits, etc.

5. Employees will be allowed, at their discretion, to cash in up to 5 working days a year with a
two-week advance notice, instead of carrying the days over to acerual, The maximum of 5
days' cash-in shall take place anytime during the year,

SECTION B

1. Any single absence in excess of five (5) regularly scheduled workdays will be treated in
accordance with the provisions of Article 13, Section C4 below, Sickness and Accident
Disability.

b

At the discretion of the Town Manager, and at no cost to the members, a doctor’s certificate,
the cost of which shall be borne by the Town, may be required for any absence due to personal
sickness or injury in excess of three (3) but less than six (6) scheduled workdays. Any absence
in excess of five (5) regularly scheduled workdays will require a doctor’s certificate for
payment eligibility as provided in this Article.

3. It is understood that abuse of sick leave may result in disciplinary action to the mermber
consistent with Article 26 of this Agreement.



4. A regular full-time member or a regular part-time member, on a pro-rata basis, will be eligible
for Personal Sickness and Accident Disability benefits beginning with the sixth (6th)
regularly scheduled workday of absence upon presentation of physician's certificate based on
the following employment schedule:

6 months but less than 2 years 6 weeks @ 60% pay

2 years but less than 5 years 6 weeks (@ 60% pay, 6 weeks at full pay
5 years but less than 10 years 6 weeks (@ 60% pay, 14 weeks at full pay
10 years but less than 15 years 6 weeks (@ 60% pay, 30 weeks at full pay
15 years but less than 20 years 36 weeks @ full pay

20 year plus 52 weeks @ full pay

A member having grandfathered sick leave under this Article may utilize such accruals to supplement
the provisions of Section B4 of this Article in the event the tenin of a disability exceeds the member's
eligibility schedule provided in Section B4 of this Article.

Maintaining eligibility for the term of the absence wili require ongoing evidence that the member is
under the ongoing care of a physician and following an approved, recommended treatment program,
Reinstatement from a disability absence will require a physician's certificate verifying the member’s
fitness for work. The Town may, at its expense and discretion and as a condition for continued
coverage o7 reinstatement, schedule a member absent under this Article to see a second physician of
the Town's choosing if it has reason for concern relative to either the member's treatment program or
expected recovery period. In the event there is a difference of opinion between the member's treating
physician and the Town's second opinion physician, the Town may, at its expense and discretion and
as a condition for continued coverage or reinstaternent, schedule the member for a third medical
opinion with a physician mutually agreed upon by the treating and second opinion physicians to
resolve any discrepancy between treating and second opinion physicians. The Town will rely on the
above process in determining eligibility for continued coverage or reinstatement.

5. A member who refuses to provide evidence of ongoing treatment, and/or refuses to submit to
second and third medical opinion diagnoesis and/or to modify the treatment program as
determined appropriate through second/third medical opinion process shall be subject to
disciplinary action.

6. If, after receiving benefits for a medically certified disability absence, a member returns to
work for less than two (2) weeks and becomes disabled again for the same or another
disability, benefits will resume on the first day of absence. 1f a member returns for two (2),
but less than twelve (12) weeks, benefits will not start again untii the sixth (6th) regularly
scheduled workday. In either case, the duration of benefits paid during the previous absence
is counted in determining the amount and duration of benefits regardless of whether the

10



absences are due to the same or different cause. After twelve (12) weeks back at work, a

member. will again be eligible for the full benefit payment schedule as provided for in Section
B4 of this Article.

7. Partial Disability: In the event a member is determined fit to return to work on a part-time
basis, benefits for the difference between the part-time and full-time hours will be paid in
accordance with the schedule provided in Section B4 of this Article. In no case shall the
application of full and/or partial benefits extend beyond the benefit schedule provided in
Section B4 of this Article.

ARTICLE 14
FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Under the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA"), ali employees who have
been employed by the town for at least twelve (12) months and have worked at least 1,230 hours

during the prior twelve (12) months prior to a leave request are entitled to take an unpaid leave of
absence of not more than twelve (12) work wecks in the event of:

(A)  the birth of a child, in order to care for the child (feave must be taken within twelve (12)
months of the birth of the child);

(B)  an adoption or foster care placement of a child, in order to care for the child (leave must be
taken within twelve (12) months of the adoption or placement);

(C)  aserious health condition of the employee's parent, spouse, minor child, or adult child when
the ill person is not capable of self-care and the employee is needed for such care; or

(D) aserious health condition of the employee which results in the employee's inability to perform
his or her job.

As stated above, an eligible employee is entitled to a total of twelve (12) workweeks of leave during
any twelve-(12) month period. That twelve (12) month period is defined as a "rolling" twelve (12)
month period measured backward from the date an employee begins FMLA leave. In other words,
the number of weeks which an employee has available upon the beginning of a FMLA leave shall be
twelve (12) weeks less the number of FMLA leave weeks taken in the twelve (12) month period prior
to the beginning of the current FMLA leave (the "Available Leave Weeks"). For example, if an
employee has taken eight (8) weeks of FMLA leave during the past twelve (12) months, an additional
four (4) weeks of leave could be taken when a second leave is requested. It an employee used four
(4) weeks beginning February), 1999, four (4) weeks beginning June 1, 1999, and four (4) weeks
beginning December 1, 1999, the employee would not be entitled to any additional leave until

February 1, 2000. Beginning on February 1, 2000, the employee would be entitled to four additional
weeks.

11



FMLA leaves for the birth or placement for adoption or foster care of a child, as described in
paragraphs A and B above, must be taken all at once unless otherwise agreed to by the Town. If
medically necessary, FMLA leaves due to illness as described in paragraphs C and D above may be
taken on an intermittent or reduced work schedule basis. If intenmittent FMLA lcave is requested,
the town may require the employee to transfer temporarily to an alternate position which better
accommodates periods of absence or a part-time schedule, provided that the position has equivalent
pay and benefits.

An employee's accrued, unused vacation time will be included as part of the twelve (12) week leave
requirement for types A, B, or C leaves listed above. For example, an employee with two

(2) weeks eaned, used vacation time is required to use that time before taking not more than ten (10)
additional paid weeks. For type C or D FMLA leave, employees will be required to use annual
accrued sick time before utilizing vacation time. If an employee qualifies for disability payments
under the town's personal, sickness, and disability leave, the employee may opt, but will not be
required, to apply a pro rata share of any remaining accrued, unused sick leave or vacation once sick
leave accrued is exhausted to supplement the difference between the short term disability benefit and
his/her regular base pay.

If the employee on FMLA leave is an exempt employee and is among the highest paid ten percent of
town employees within a seventy-five-mile radius, and keeping the job open for the employee would
result in substantial economic injury to the town, reinstatement can be denied at the end of the leave
period.

When an employee requests any leave of absence that qualifies as leave under the FMLA, including
time when the employee is receiving worker's compensation benefits, the town may designate such

leave as FMLA leave upon written notification to the employee.

Status of Emplovee Benefits

While on FMLA leave employees may continue to participate in the town's group health

insurance program in the same manner as empioyees not on FMLA leave. If the FMLA leave is paid
through use of earned vacation, personal, or sick time, the insurance premiums will continue to be
paid through payroll deductions. In the event of unpaid FMLA leave, the employee must pay to the
town the employee's share of any medical insurance premiwms once per month in advance on the
first day of each month. In the event that the employee elects not to return to work upon completion
of'a FMLA leave of absence, the town may recover from the employee the cost of any paymenis to
maintain \he employee's medical coverage, unless the employee's failure to return is because of a
serious health condition or for other reasons beyond the employee's control.

Benefit entitlements based on length of service will be calculated as of the last paid workday prior to
the start of the leave of absence. For example, an employee on leave will not accrue vacation or sick
time. At the end of an authorized FMLA leave, an employee will be reinstated to his or her original
or comparable position.

Basic Reculations and Conditions of Leave




The town may require medical certification to support a claim for FMLA leave for an employee's
own serious health condition or to care for a seriously il child, spouse or parent. For the employee's
own medical teave, the certification must include a statement that the employee is unable to perform
the functions of his or her position. For FMLA leave to care for a seriously ill child, spouse or parent,
the certification must include an estimate of the amount of time the employee is needed to provide
care. Medical certifications and periodic recertification’s shali be at the employee's expense. At its
discretion and expense, the town may require a second medical opinion regarding the initial
certification. If the first and second opinions differ, the town, at its own expense, may require the
binding opinion of a third health care provider, approved jointly by the town and the employee.

Notification and Reportine Requirements

When the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, such as the birth or adoption of a child, or planned
medical treatment, the employee must provide reasonable prior notice and make efforts to schedule
leave so as not to disrupt town operations.- In the case of illness, the employee will be required to
report periodically on his or her FMLA leave status and intention to return to work. At the expiration
of any FMLA leave due to employee's own, illness, the employee must present a written authorization
from his or her doctor stating the employee is ready to return to work.

Procedures

A request for Family and Medical Leave of Absence Form should be submitted to your

immediate supervisor and the Town Manager. If possible, the form should be submitted thirty (30}
days in advance of the effective date of the FMLA leave. Forms are available in the Town Manager’s
office. '

All requests for FMLA leaves of absence due to illness should include the following information to
be supplied by the treating medical provider: 1) the date on which the serious health condition
commenced; 2) the probable duration of the condition; and 3) the appropriate medical facts within
the knowledge of the health care provider regarding the condition. In addition, for purposes of FMLA
leave for a child, spouse, or parent, the request should give an estimate of the amount of time that the
employee is needed to provide such care. For the purposes of FMLA leave for an employee's illness,
the request must state that the employee is unable to perform at least one of the essential functions
of his or her position. In the case of a medical treatment, the certification must include the dates on
which such treatment is expected to be given and the duration of the treatment.

Coordination with QOther Town Policies: Reference to FMLA and Federal Regulations

In the event of any conflicts between this policy and other town policies the provisions of this policy
shall govern. The FMLA and the FMLA federal regulations issued by the U.S. Department of Labor

contain many limitations and qualifications for entitlement and governance of FMLA leave not stated
kerein.

The terms of the FMLA and the FMLA federal regulations are incorporated herein and wil} be applied
in all instances of requested or designated FMLA leave.



The FMLA does not affect any federal or state law-prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any state

or local law or collective bargaining agreement, which provides greater family, or medical leave
rights.

ARTICLE 15
WORKER'S COMPENSATION

Absence of an employee for causes occuring while engaged in working for the town and covered by
worker's compensation as specified by the laws of the state of New Hampshire, shall receive, from

the town's insurer, worker's compensation, in a dollar amount and for a period of time specified by
state law.

Incidents which may result in awarding worker's compensation must be reported to the department
Y g D p P

head as soon as possible to ensure prompt processing of claims and proper compliance with insurance
faws.

After a reasonable length of time, the town reserves the right to have up to two (2) physical
examinations made to determine the minimum physical condition of the employee for continued
employment. These examinations will be made at the discretion of the town and the cost of said
examination will be borne by the town of Ashland.

ARTICLE 16
LEAVE OF ABSENCE

1. The Town agrees to aliow the steward or alternate steward reasonable time, without loss of
pay, during regular working hours for the purpose of investigating, processing and . settling
grievances. The Union representatives shall obtain prior permission to absent themselves
from work before leaving a work site and shall obtain prior permission of the immediate
supervisor Involved before interrupting the work of an employee located at a different work

site,

2. Time lost by a representative of the Union on grievance settlements or negotiations shall be
paid for by the Town as provided in RSA 273-A: 11.

3. The Town agrees when possible to authorize three (3) days off, to be divided among such

officers, stewards or councilors at the discretion of the union, in any calendar year, without loss
of time of pay to attend Association training programs or meetings. The Association shall
notify the Town no less than twenty (20) days in advance of such training programs. Any leave
or time off provided for in this Article may be refused or withheid if such leave or time off will
mterfere with the normal and orderly operation of the department. It is expressly understood
and agreed that such refusal or withholding of leave or time off shall be reasonable and not
arbitrary.

A regular town employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay by the Hirng
Authority upon recommendation of the Town Manager for a period deemed necessary by the
employee for the purpose of leave but not in excess of six (6) months and only if determined

14



]

L

that the essential functions of the department will not be interrupted by the granting of such
lcave. The employee shall return to work upon expiration of the granted leave or arrange an
extension of the leave prior to its expiration.

No leave, including extensions, may be granted for a total leave period greater than one (1)
year. Failure on the part of the employee to return to work on expiration of a granted leave
without having arranged for an extension may be deemed a resignation. When computing
length of service for any reason, time spent on leave of absence shall not be counted. In effect,
this action changes the anniversary date of the employee on leave, The position vacated by

an employee on leave may be temporarily filled by the Board of Selectmen at the same or
lower rate of pay.

The six-(6) month limit does not apply to leave without pay for military duty.

Once 1n each calendar year employees who have reported to work and are called away due to
a family emergency or illness will be given the remainder of the day off with pay. Additional
time off will be without pay or taken as earned vacation or accrued personal time with
supervisory approval,

ARTICLE 17
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Bereavement leave of up to five (5) working days with pay shall be granted a regular or part
time employee who works at least twenty (20) hours per week in the event of the death of
his/her: spouse, significant other, child, parent, sibling, grandparent or guardian.

Bereavement leave of up to three (3) working days with pay shall be granted a regular or .
part-time employee who works at least twenty (20) hours per week in the event of the death
of his/her parent in-law, son or daughter-in-law, grandchild, brother-in-law, sister-in-law.

Bereavement leave of one (1) working day with pay shall be granted a regular or part time
employee who works at least twenty hours per week in the event of the death of hig/her aunt,
or uncie.

Under no circumstances shall bereavement leave be paid on an overtime basis.

15



ARTICLE 18
MILITARY LEAVE

An employee who is called to or ordered and performs short-term annual active duty for training as
a reserve of the United States Armed Forces Reserve shall be paid as provided herein and in
accordance with Federal Law, for days spent performing such duty provided the employee would not
otherwise be on layoff or leave of absence. This policy includes performance of State active duty as
a National Guard Member. In order to receive payment under this paragraph, an . employee must
give the Town prior notice of such military duty and upon return to work, furnish the Town with a
statement of the military compensation (other than travel and per diem) received for performing such
duty. Payment under this paragraph is limited to a maximum often (10) working days in a calendar
year. In computing the pay due the employee, if any, payment will reflect the difference between the
employee's straight time rate for the days in question and the military payment for the number of
days involved if the normal pay exceeds the military pay for the specified period.

ARTICLE 19
JURY AND WITNESS DUTY

An employee who is summoned and reports for jury duty, as prescribed by applicable law, shall be
paid by the Town an amount equal to the difference between the amount of wages the employee
would have eamed by working during straight lime hours for the Town for each day on which he/she

reports for or performs jury duty and in which he/she would otherwise have been scheduled to work
for the Town.

In order to receive payment an employee must give prior notice that he/she has been directed to report
and must fumish satisfactory evidence that he/she repotted and performed jury duty on the days for
which he/she claims such payment. The provisions of this paragraph are not applicable to an
employee who, without being sunumoned, volunteers for jury duty.

ARTICLE 20
LIFE INSURANCE

1. Each full-time employee shall be entitled to life insurance on a group policy. Coverage will
begin the first of the month following the date of hire. Coverage will be equal to one times
annual base salary to a maximum fifty thousand (550,000.00) dollars up to age 65 when
coverage will be 65% of annual base salary. Coverage will be 50% of annual base salary at
age 70 and above. Above referenced employees will also be eligible for accidental death and
dismemberment coverage equal to one limes their annual base salary to a maximum of fifty
thousand ($50,000.00) dellars up to age 65 when coverage will be 65% of annual base salary.
Coverage will be 50% of annual base salary at age 70 and above. All coverage will terminate
upon severance of employment.

o

The Town reserves the right to contract with a qualitied insurance carrier of its choosing to
provide the above amounts of benefits.

16



ARTICLE 21
HEALTH INSURANCE

The town shali provide health insurance coverage for bargaining unit employees as follows:

1.

o

Effective July 1, 2020, the Town will provide employees with health insurance coverage
under Access Blue New England ABISIPDED(07L)-RX10/20/45/3K(L). The employee’s
cost for ABISIPDED(07L)-RX10/20/45/3K(L) coverage will be ten percent (10%) of the
premium and the Town will pay ninety percent (90% of the premium.

A regular part time employee whose normal workweek is thirty (30) hours or more may
participate in the town's group hospitalization and medical insurance coverage at the
employee's expense. The employee shall authorize the town to deduct from the employee's
weekly pay sufficient monies to pay the monthly premium for such coverage.

It is agreed by all parties concerned that the town reserves and shall have the right to change
the insurance carrier or to become self-insured, provided the benefits to participants are not
decreased.

Employees on role as of April, 2001, who retire with twenty (20) years continuous service
with the Town under the New Hampshire Retirement System plan will be eligible to receive
single person health insurance coverage provided employee left the town in good standing.
Employees hired after April, 2001, will be eligible for health insurance coverage as provided
by NH Statute upon retirement.

Effective April, 2012, any regular, full-time employee eligible for health Insurance who can
demonstrate they are currently covered under a spouse’s coverage and opts not to partake of
the town's health coverage may make application to the town to receive 25% of the HMO.
premium the town would normally pay for single, two- person, or family coverage as would
be appropriate to the employee's family status. Payment and review of coverage will be made
quarterly on application by the employee for the prior quarter.

The Town shall review the rising costs of health insurance periodically throughout the

duration of this contract and reserves the right to contact the Union for renegotiation purposes
as needed.

17



ARTICLE 22
WAGE RATES

Effective and retroactive to April 1, 2020, bargaining unit employees shall be placed on the new
wage matrix, herein identified as Appendix A, at a wage rate no less than the employee was
receiving prior to April 1, 2020.

Effective July 1, 2024, bargaining unit employees shall receive a cost of living wage adjustment of
three percent (3%) as outlined in the Wage Matrix identified as Appendix A.

Effective July 1, 2021, bargaining unit employees shall receive a cost of living wage adjustment of
two percent (2%).

Effective July 1, 2022, bargaining unit employees shall receive a cost of living wage adjustment of
one percent (1%).

New employees shall receive a step raise upon successful completion of the employee’s
probationary period. Bargaining unit employees shall receive an annual step raise on the
anniversary date of hire in each year of the agreement.

Paychecks will be distributed on the Thursday after the completed workweek. In the event that
Thursday fall on a holiday, paychecks will be distributed on the prior day.

Employees that have achieved the maximum step of their respective labor grade shall receive a
one-time payment of $300, which shall not be added to their base pay, on their anniversary date
of liire.

ARTICLE 23
UNIFORMS

All bargaining unit employees will be required to wear a departmental uniform, if the employee's job
so requires, during working hours. The uniform items listed below shall constitute the official
uniform of the Municipal Services Departinent and there shall be no substitution of items by the
employee or alterations of uniform.

The following items shall be issued to each employee by the Department and shall be subject to the
replacement policy listed below:

ITEM REPLACEMENT
5 Uniform Sweatshirts As needed

11 Uniform Pants As needed .

11 T-shirts Annually in May
2 Insulated, water resistant, three-season jacket As necded

18



In addition to the replacement schedule, above, the department head may authorize early replacement
of any item in the event of unusual wear or damage in the course of town employment. Uniforms

shall be worn only while the employee is in the performance of his/her duties or commuting to and
from such duties.

The town shall provide a boot/clothing allowance not to exceed two-hundred dollars (5200} per year.
It is intended that reimbursement will be for the type of boots/clothing required for the position.
Employees will present receipt for such purchase before reimbursement is made. In the event the
assignment/position requires protective clothing, such clothing wili be provided by the town.

The parties agree that each police officer shall be issued a protective vest (fit appropriate) by the
town. Protective vests shall be replaced as needed if damaged or destroyed in the line of duty or per
the manufacturers requirements, whichever comes first.

ARTICLE 24
EXPENSES

Employees incurring expenses while on town business will be reimbursed in accordance with the
prevailing town policy.

ARTICLE 25
DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

An employee may be disciplined or terminated/dismissed if there is found to be just cause for such
action. Disciplinary action will normally be taken in the following order:

(2) Verbal waming (will be followed up in a written format indicating that a verbal
wamning has been issued)

(b)  Written warning

() Three-day suspension without pay

(d)  Discharge

The above sequence need not be followed if an infraction is sufficiently severe to merit a
progressively higher level of discipline. Additionally, the town reserves the ri ght to take disciplinary
action in a manner consistent with the efficiency of operations and appropriate to the infraction
involved.

ARTICLE 26
TUITION REFUND

Courses which are a requirement of the job within a department shall be paid for entirely department.
Employees will attend at their regular rate of pay and be reimbursed for mileage if a personal caris
used. Full-time, regular employees taking courses which are related to, but not required for jobs ace
alse may be eligible for a 66% tuition refund ar the discretion of the Selectmen by-the-deparhment
within the limits of its budget. This includes books or lab fees. Employees will not attend elective
courses in a pay status nor will employees be reimbursed for mileage related to attendance unless

19



aftendance in pay status and or reimbursement for mileage is specifically approved prior to
attendance.

All courses must be approved in advance by the Board of Selectmen, and satisfactorily completed
with a grade of B or better. Upon completion, proof of payment and satisfactory completion must
be presented to the Tewn-Administrater Town Manager for reimbursement under this policy. When
a Federal or State program pays for part or all tuition, books and lab fees, the Town will reimburse
the employee only for actual costs not reimbursed from other sources.

ARTICLE 27
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The purpose of this Article is fo provide a mutually acceptable procedure for adjusting grievances
arising from an alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication with respect to one or more
unit employees, of any provision of this Agreement.

Any employee having an individual problem involving the interpretation or application of any of the
foregoing rules, policies, and the comtract may seek adjustment in accordance with the following
procedural steps. There shall, however, be no recourse for an employee discharged during a
probationary period. The grievance procedure shall be as follows:

STEP 1 - The employee shall bring the grievance to the attention of a supervisor within five (3)
workdays of the event or within five (5) work days of when the employee reasonably could have
known of the event causing the grievance but in no case more than thirty (30) days following the
event. The department head shall respond within five (5) workdays of receiving the grievance.

STEP 2 - If not satisfied with the decision of the department head, the grievant shall submit the
grievance in writing to the Town Manager within five (5) workdays of receipt of the department

head’s decision. The Town Manager shall respond within fifteen (15) workdays of receipt of the
grievance.

STEP 3 - If the employee feels that a further review is justified, notification to that effect and a
statement of all the facts pertaining to the problem shall be made in writing to the Board of Selectmen
within five (5) work days from the date the employee was informed of the Town Manager decision.
The Board of Selectmen shall review the grievance and render a decision or schedule a hearing
within five (5) workdays from the date submitted to them. If a hearing is scheduled, it shall be within
fifteen (15) workdays from the date of receipt by the Board of Selectmen and a decision rendered in
writing within ten (10} workdays thereafter. If any of the time constraints are not met in the above
steps, then the grievance will automatically move forward to the next step.

STEP 4 — If the grievant(s) and/or the Union is not satisfied with the decision of the Board of
Selectmen, the Union shall notify the Selectmen within twenty (20) work days, following receipt of

the decision of the Board of Selectmen, of their intention to submit the grievance to arbitration.

The arbitrator shall be chosen by mutual agreenent of the parties, or failing agreement, appointed
by the NH Public Employees Labor Relations Board (NH PELRB).

20



The Town and the Union may arrange mutually agreeable terms Jfor a pre-hearing conference to
consider means for expediting the hearing by, for example, veducin g theissue or issues to writing,
stipulating fucts and authenticating exhibits, and the scheduling of the arbitration hearing.
Arbitration hearings shall normally be held during the regular work day hours.

The grievant(s), the grievant(s)’s steward and the emplayee witnesses who have direct knowledge
of the circumstances and factors bearing on the case shall be excused Srom duty in order to
participate in the arbitration hearing without loss of time or compensatio.

The Arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, ignore, or modify any of the terms or conditions
of this Agreement. The Arbitrator’s decision shall not go beyond what is
necessary for the interpretation and application of express provisions of this Agreement.

The Arbitrator shall not substitute his/her judgment for that of the parties in the exercise of rights

granted or retained by this Agreement. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on
the parties.

The fees and reasonable expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borme, by the losing party.

Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses.

It is expressly understood that either the Association or the Town may initiate informal action with
the other party to resolve the grievance prior to going to arbitration.

Should either party for any reason decide to reconsider the grievance, the other party shall agree to
cooperate in the reconsideration. However, failure to reach a settlement shall not prejudice the
request for arbitration.

Missed Time Limits: Failure by the Town or its agents to communicate the decision on « grievance
within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant ro proceed to the next step, us provided
Jor herein. Failure of the grievant in any step of this procedure to appeal a decision to the next
step within the specified time limits shall be deemed o waiver of future appeal of the decision, and
will be considered acceptance of the decision rendered,

Extension of Time Limits: All the time limits herein may be extended b y mutual agreement of the
Town and the Union. Should any time limit provided for herein expire on a weekend or holiday,
then the time limit set forth shall be extended to the next regular non-holiday weekday {Monday
through Friday).

ARTICLE 28
NO STRIKE. NO LOCKOUT

Under no circumstances will the Union cause, encourage, sponsor, or participate in any strike, sit
down, stay in, sick out, work slowdown, withholding of services, or any curtaiiment of work or
restriction or interference with the operations of the Departments or the Town of Ashland during the
term of this agreement. The Town agrees not to invoke or sanction any lockout of the Union
employees during the term of this Agreement.

21

e



ARTICLE 29
MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS

The employer hereby retains and reserves unto itself, all powers, rights, authority, duties and
responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and constitution of the State of New
Hampshire and of the United States and shall not be deemed to be limited in any way in the exercise
of the regular and customary functions of a public employer's management. Further, all rights which
ordinarily vest in and are exercised by public employers except such as are specifically relinquished
herein are reserved te and remain vested in the employer. The employer retains the right to exercise
managerial policy within its exclusive prerogative; to manage its affairs efficiently and economically
including, but not limited to, the use of technology, employer's organizational structure and selection,
assignment, number, direction and discipline of its personnel; to determine the methods and means
of operations; to determine work schedules, work shifts and number of hours to be worked. Further,
the employer retains the right to adopt, change, enforce, or discontinue any rules, regulations,
procedures and policies net in direct conflict with any provisions of this Agreement, state or federal
law as delineated under NH Revised Statutes Anmotated or U.S. Code, as to continue public control
of the Town of Ashland. This enumeration of management's rights shall not be deemed as to exclude
other management rights not specifically enumerated and the employer retains solely and exclusively
all of its common law, statutory and inherent rights.

ARTICLE 30
SUBCONTRACTING

The Town recognizes the concern of the Union in regard to contracting or sub-contracting work
which results in a reduction of the work force. If the Town or a department of the Town covered .
by this Agreement changes its method of operations which involves contracting out work which is
being performed by bargaining unit employees, the Town and/or department will give ninety (90)
days' notice to the Union of its intention. Furthermore, the Town will make every effort to absorb
affected employees into other Town positions. In those cases, where employees are not absorbed into
Town positions, the Town and/or department will provide as much advance notice of pending layoff
as reasonably possible.

ARTICLE 31
SEVERABILITY

In the event that any article or section of an article of this Agreement is declared to be illegal, void,
or invalid in whole or in part by a Court of competent jurisdiction after all appeals, if any, have been
exhausted, all other articles and sections of article shall remain in full force and effect to the same
extent that the article or section of an article declared to be illegal, void, or invalid have never been
incorporated into this Agreement, except that the parties agree to meet within ninety (90) days to
negotiate a substitute for the invalidated article or section thereof.

o
i~



ARTICLE 33
DURATION

This agreement as executed by the parties is effective April 1, 2020 and shall remain in full force and
effect until March 31, 2623.

Renegotiation of this Agreement will be effected by written notice by one party to the other not later
than August 1, 2022 or earlier by mutual agreement. Negotiations shall commence within fifteen (15}
days after receipt of such notice.

In witness whereof, the patties hereto by their authorized representatives have executed this contract

onthis__ dayof, 2020

For the Board of Selectmen, For the Union,

Eli Badger, Chairman of the Board George Chase, Chapter President
Kathleen DeWolfe, Vice Chainnan of the Board Elizabeth Scrafford, Negotiator
Frances Newton, Selectman Neil Smith, Field Representative

Allan Cilley, Selectman

Jamie Lyford, Selectman

Charles Smith, Town Manager

o]
ad



Date of Hire Rate End of Probation Increase 1 Increase 2 increase 3 Increase ) increase 5 Increase 6 Increase 7 Increaze B Increaze 9 Increase 10 Increase 11 Increase LY increase 13 Top Rate

Transfee Station Attendant 5 1413 3 B500 5 1515 5 153D 5 1545 5 1561 5 1576 5 1592 5 1608 5 624 5 1640 5 1857 5 1673 5 1680 5 1207 51724
Administrative Assistang 3 217 3 1826 5 1844 5 1663 5 1881 5 1900 5 19.1% 5 1928 5 1355 5 1997 5 1337 5 2017 3 2037 3 2058 5 1073 52099
Clerk Secretary {Water) FT 5 1593 3§ 16591 5 1708 5 17.25 5 1742 5 395% 5 L1777 5 1795 5 1BI3 5 333L 5 EAY 5 1568 5 1886 5 {505 5 1921 51943
Clerk Secretary [Water) PT 5 i4.63 % 15,82 5 1568 5 1584 5 1553 5 165 5 1632 5 1648 5 1664 5 L63L 5 1698 5 iF1S S 5 1743 3 IV6T 51784
Cterk Sacretary {Etectric}#T S 1577 5 1675 5 1724 5 1776 5 18.29 5 KBB4 5 1840 5 4932 5 2059 5 3120 5 2134 3 225D 5 5 2387 5 2458 52532
Clerk Secretary [Electric} PT 5§ 13.4% 5 1537 5 1533 5 1631 5 1680 5 EV3D S 1762 5 1835 $ 1990 5 1947 5 205 5 3466 5 5 2491 5 2257 523.35
Machanic 5 2213 5 23.55 5 379 5 2403 5 2427 5 2451 5 2975 5 1500 % 2535 5 2550 5 2376 3 2602 5 5 W54 5 2681 527.07
Otfice Manager {Elecuric) 5 1608 5 1701 S 1752 5 1805 5 1853 5 19.14 S 1972 5 I031 5 2032 5 2155 § 233 5 228 § 5 2435 5 2458 52573
Equipment Operator/Laborer 5 1658 5 1758 3 1776 5 1794 3 18,12 5 18306 5 1348 5 1867 5 1385 5 1904 5 12023 5 1941 5 § 138l 53 2001 52021
Lineman Apprentice 1 S 19.25 3 L0 5 2275 5 2343 5 2514 5 2486 5 2561 5 I6A7 5 27.16 & RTS8 5 2882 5 168 5 5 3149 5 3255 53344
Lineman Apprentice 2 5 2275 5 X350 5 2625 5 2704 5 2785 5 2846B 5 2954 5 3043 5 3134 5 3228 5 3335 5 345 3 5 3634 5 37.43 538.5%
Lineman Apprentice 3 3 26.25 5 2800 5 2275 5 30464 3 3156 5 3250 5 3348 5 2449 5 3551 5 3659 3 376 5 35B2 5 S 2L18 5 4242 54359
Lineman Apprantice 4 M 1075 5 3150 5 3335 5 34525 5 35327 5 3633 5 3741 5 3655 5 3970 5 4089 5 4212 5 4338 8 5 4603 5 4741 54583
Laemman 152 Class 5 33.2% 5 35,00 5 3500 5 36.05 5 3713 5 3825 5 3339 5 4057 5 SL7® 5 43985 5 4434 5 5567 5 5 3845 5 4590 55140
Operator (Water} 5 1655 5 1785 5 1773 5 1751 5 18.0% 5 1827 5 1845 G 1863 5 1832 5 1504 5 1320 5 193% S 5 1978 5 1335 52018
Supervisor {Water} 5 1238 3 2543 3 2468 5 2892 5 2617 5 2597 5 1568 5 2593 5 2619 5 3646 5 2672 5 2653 5 2726 5 QW53 5 IA5L $2%.08
Laborer H 1637 5 1737 5 1755 5 1272 5 ATS0 5 1208 5 1826 5 1844 5 1863 5 188: 5 1900 5 1919 & 1338 5 i95%5 5 1877 51997
Highway Foreman 5 1786 3§ WES 5 2BT6 5 2097 5 211E 5 2139 5 2160 5 2182 5 2204 5 I2.26 5 2248 5 2270 5 2283 5 2316 5 239 52363
Police Officer 5 1946 5 1986 5 2018 5 2038 5 2085 5 2079 5 2100 5 2121 5 3142 5 2163 5 2185 5 1207 50 2223 5 125t 5 2274 52296
Police Sergeant 3 203 35 22584 5 2277 & 2300 3 2323 5 2345 & 23.6% 5 3393 5 2417 5 2441 5 2386 5 2450 5 2515 5 2540 5 2565 52851

24



